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Lansdowne is a one-story Greek Revival house located on fifty acres of land
remaining from an original 727-acre tract three miles north of Natchez, Mississippi.
The residence faces west from an elevated site which also contains two brick depen-
dencies flanking the rear service yard and a double brick privy. Standing two
stories high, each dependency contains four rooms, a central chimney, double gal-
leries supported by square columns, and an exterior stair. The south building once
housed a billiard parlor, office, schoolroom, and governess's quarters, while the
kitchen, washroom, and servants' quarters were located in the north building. Today,
rental units occupy these matching structures.

The residence is a nearly square structure measuring sixty by sixty-eight feet,
raised on a high basement and constructed of brick covered with stucco scored in
imitation of ashlar masonry. A hipped roof covers the house and is surmounted by
a lantern which admits light to the attic through narrow, clerestory windows. The
principal, or west, elevation is divided into five bays, the center three of which
are sheltered by a portico of fluted Doric columns, entablature, and steeply raked
pediment. An iron balustrade cast with the popular lyre motif follows the perimeter
of the portico except in the center bay, where gracefully flared steps descend five
feet to the ground. The principal entrance is contained in a pilastered frontispiece
with engaged columns separating the four-paneled door from flanking sidelights. Jib
doors under double-hung, six-over-six windows provide additional interior access from
the portico.

A gallery occupies the entire sixty-foot width of the rear, or east, elevation.
Because it faces a service yard, the design of the rear gallery is less academic
than its portico counterpart on the facade. Square, paneled columns with simple
molded bases and caps are used instead of round, fluted columns. Much of the gal-
lery is enclosed with stationary blinds above a wooden railing as a measure against
inclement weather. :

The interior of Lansdowne is arranged in a triple-pile plan containing a central
passage fourteen feet wide separating a parlor, dining room, and large butler's pan-
try on the north from three bedrooms opposite. A small stair located in the butler's
pantry gives access to various storage rooms in the basement and attic.

Like many of its contemporaries, Lansdowne contains simple Greek Revival woodwork
proportioned to be in scale with the spacious rooms. Six-panel doors, fitted with
silver-plated hardware, are surrounded by batter-and-eared architraves supporting
cornices which rise slightly on axis to suggest pediments. A large pilastered front-
ispiece frames the opening between the parlor and dining rooms, which can be closed
off by means of sliding doors. Baseboards are fifteen inches high and are grained
to imitate oak or marbleized to match the black or white mantels in various rooms.
Decorative plaster work is limited to wide cornices and centerpieces.

The most significant feature of the interior of Lansdowne is its remarkably well-
preserved decorative scheme, which, in the parlor at least, represents one of the most
complete statements of the Rococo Revival taste in America to survive from the mid-
nineteenth century. Hanging from gilt window cornices are the original brocaded damask
lambrequins, which have faded from scarlet to a golden pink. The hand-blocked wall-
paper, imported from the Alsatian firm of Jean Zuber et Cie, divides the walls into
a series of vertical panels which frame large sculpturesque figures with elaborately
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

There is perhaps no other historic structure in Mississippi which enjoys such
remarkable integrity as Lansdowne, a highly significant Greek Revival residence
located three miles north of Natchez, on Pine Ridge Road. When it was constructed
in ca. 1853, the interior was lavishly decorated in the prevailing Rococo Revival
taste with many items imported from Europe along with domestic arts and manufactures.
The most significant feature of the interior scheme is the Zuber '"fresco paper,' which,
according to Catherine L. Frangiamore, may be the only example of this popular mid-
nineteenth century treatment to survive in an American house (Frangiamore to Marshall,
February 19, 1976). In addition, original draperies, furniture, graining, marbling,
hardware, and fixtures, although often tattered and worn, have been carefully pre-
served by three generations of the Marshall family, who have occupied Lansdowne since
it was constructed. Because of their responsible stewardship, this remarkable document
has survived as one of the nation's most significant examples of a sophisticated Rococo
Revival interior scheme.

Lansdowne was built as the residence of George M. Marshall (1830-99) on land given
to him by David Hunt, whose daughter Charlotte married Marshall in 1852 (Deed Book
LL, p. 386). After attendlng Jefferson College in Washington, Mississippi, Marshall
received an A.M. degree from Princeton and was engaged in planting at the time of his
marriage. His extensive agricultural holdings in Mississippi and Louisiana were valued
at $319,000 in 1860, a figure which does not include much of his earned and inherited
wealth (James, p. 156). Like many wealthy planters, Marshall was active in the poli-
tical, religious, and military affairs of his time. In 1855, he was elected to the
Board of Police,. afterwards called the Board of Supervisors, of Adams County and was
subsequently reelected in 1858 and 1860. During the Civil War he served with the
Natchez Southrons and was wounded during the Battle of Shiloh, April, 1862. Discharged
from the Confederate Army shortly thereafter, Marshall returned to Lansdowne, where
he resumed his interests in civic activities, politics, and planting. In 1888, and
again in 1890, Marshall represented Adams County in the Mississippi House of Represen-
tatives, where he served on the committee on appropriation and education. For many
years, Marshall served as a vestry man of Trinity Episcopal Church in Natchez (Good-
speed, 2:398-99).

After Marshall's death in 1899, Lansdowne was occupied by his son, and it is
currently the home of his grandson's widow, Mrs. George M. Marshall III, and his
granddaughter, Mrs. Singleton Gardner (nee Agnes Marshall). This continuity of
family ownership has assured the integrity of the buildings and their contents,
thus preserving one of America's most significant mid-nineteenth century architectural
sites.
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7 - DESCRIPTION

colored flowered borders. Known in the nineteenth century as 'fresco papers," these
which have survived at Lansdowne may well be unique in American decorative arts. Com-
pleting the scheme are a bronze chandelier with its original shades, which was supplied
by gas manufactured on the place; a carved marble mantelpiece; and a set of splendid
parlor furniture designed in the Belter style, although it was imported from France.
The remarkable integrity of this elaborate interior design is the glory of Lansdowne.
Intrusions necessary to keep the house usable as a residence have been kept to
a minimum. In the early twentieth century a bathroom was installed in the southeast
corner of the rear gallery. Electricity was not introduced until 1940. 1In 1962, a
second bathroom was added by enclosing one corner of a bedroom with arched blinds
eight feet tall. That same year, a kitchen, which carefully preserved the original,
oak-grained cabinets, was installed in the butler's pantry.
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1,461 feet; turns north for 626 feet; turns west for 1,315 feet; then follows the
bayou south to point of beginning.
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